

User's Manual



4-/9-Channel Cam Viewer E-series for Intelligent Management

CV7-VA



www.PLANET.com.tw



Copyright

Copyright © 2015 by PLANET Technology Corp. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language or computer language, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, magnetic, optical, chemical, manual or otherwise, without the prior written permission of PLANET.

PLANET makes no representations or warranties, either expressed or implied, with respect to the contents hereof and specifically disclaims any warranties, merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. Any software described in this manual is sold or licensed "as is". Should the programs prove defective following their purchase, the buyer (and not PLANET, its distributor, or its dealer) assumes the entire cost of all necessary servicing, repair, and any incidental or consequential damages resulting from any defect in the software. Further, PLANET reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes from time to time in the contents hereof without obligation to notify any person of such revision or changes.

All brand and product names mentioned in this manual are trademarks and/or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Revision

User's Manual of PLANET 4-/9-Channel Cam Viewer E-series for Intelligent Management Model: CV7-VA Rev: 1.00 (August, 2015) Part No. EM-CV7-VA



Table of Contents

Chapter 1. Product Introduction	4
1.1 Overview	4
1.2 Features	
1.3 Product Specifications	5
1.4 System Requirement	
Chapter 2. Software Installation	6
2.1 Software Installation	6
2.2 License and Activation	11
2.2.1 Online Activation	11
2.2.2 Offline Activation	
2.2.3 Verify Your License	13
Chapter 3. Software Setup	
3.1. Introduction	14
3.2. Add Video Source	15
3.3 Add Channels	20
3.4 Create an Analysis Rule	21
3.4.1 Live View Analysis	22
3.4.2 Playback Analysis	23
3.4.3 Raw File Analysis	
3.5 New Analysis Window UI Introduction	27
3.6 Analysis Introduction	
3.6.1 Line Crossing	29
3.6.2 Enter Area	
3.6.3 Missing Object	
3.6.4 Unattended Object	
3.6.5 Tamper	
3.6.6 Object Count	
3.6.7 People Count	
3.7 Stop an Analysis Rule	45
3.8 Display Detection Indicators	
3.9 Analysis Results	
3.9.1 Search Results by Filters	
3.9.2 View Multiple Analysis Rule Results	49
3.9.3 Delete Analysis Rule Result	
3.10 Watch Event Playback	
3.11 Counting Report	
3.12 Export Search Result	53





Chapter 1. Product Introduction

1.1 Overview

PLANET CV7-VA is a video analytics software designed to transform your video surveillance network into a smart detection system. This software uses advanced image processing algorithms to recognize humans and objects. The algorithms are able to track the movements of objects, such as appearances, disappearances or loitering, and determine whether the movements are suspicious based on user-defined rules. Once a suspicious activity is detected, users can also play back to watch these events and use them as references or evidences if needed. In addition, this software also provides algorithms to count the number of objects or humans passing by a specific location. The CV7-VA helps you enhance your existing surveillance system while providing you with valuable information for business intelligence and management.

The CV7-VA offers robust, feature-rich video analysis functions, such as Line Crossing, Entering Area, Missing Object, Unattended Object, Tampering, Object Counting and People Counting.



PLANET CV7-VA is interesting in that those inactive video footages can sometimes be turned into valuable information. So, with the CV7-VA, the video surveillance can further enhance security. In addition, its video analysis functions are ideal for commercial use like people and vehicle counting. Thus, the application of the CV7-VA for business is limitless.

1.2 Features

- Concurrent analysis of up to 4/9 channels
- Up to 4 simultaneous algorithms per channel
- Multiple algorithms including Line Crossing, Entering Area, Missing Object, Unattended Object, Tampering, Object Counting and People Counting



- Event search and filtering based on time, algorithm and object color
- Play back captured events
- Export videos of captured events
- Analysis for live and pre-recorded videos

1.3 Product Specifications

Product	CV7- VA4	CV7- VA9			
General					
Max. Channels	4	9			
Max. Number of Analytical Channels	4/9				
Video Compression	H.264, MPEG-4, MJPEG				
Camera Resolution	Up to 10 megapixels				
Language	English, Traditional Chinese				
Video Analytic Algorithms					
Algorithm	Line Crossing, Entering Area Object, Tampering, Object C	, Missing Object, Unattended ounting, People Counting			

1.4 System Requirement

Hardware requirement: The Minimum system requirement						
CPU	Intel Core i5 2.4 GHz (or above recommended)					
RAM	4GB(or above recommended)					
Screen Resolution	800x600					
Display card	Independent display card suggested Note: Make sure your display DPI setting is set to default at 96DPI To set DPI value, right-click on desktop, choose "settings" tab >> "advanced"					
Ethernet interface	Ethernet 1000BASE-T recommended					
Software requirement:						
OS	32-bit: Windows 7, Windows 8 or Windows Server 2008 64-bit: Windows 7, Windows 8, Windows Server 2008 R2, Windows Web Server 2008 R2 or Windows Server 2012 R2					



Chapter 2. Software Installation

2.1 Software Installation

The program installation can be simple and intuitive by following the installation wizard's instructions. The program can be used right after installation is completed, without the need to restart the computer.

To install the software, follow the steps below:

- 1. Find the CV7-VA compressed file that you downloaded and extract it.
- 2. Execute the install shield application 🐸 .
- 3. If prompted by the InstallShield Wizard to install Microsoft Visual C++ 2012 Redistributable Package, follow the on-screen instructions to do so, as it is crucial for the proper functioning of the program.

Microsoft Visual C++ 2012 Redistributable (x86) - 11.0.60610 Set
Microsoft Visual C++ 2012
Redistributable (x86) - 11.0.60610
MICROSOFT SOFTWARE LICENSE TERMS
MICROSOFT VISUAL C++ 2012 RUNTIME LIBRARIES
These license terms are an agreement between Microsoft Corporation (or based on where you live, one of its affiliates) and you. Please read them.
I agree to the license terms and conditions
Install
闭 Microsoft Visual C++ 2012 Redistributable (x86) - 11.0.60610 Set
Microsoft Visual C++ 2012
Redistributable (x86) - 11.0.60610
Setup Successful
Cłęse



4. Proceed by reading and agreeing to the license agreement and click "Next".

CV7-VA - InstallShield Wizard	×
License Agreement Please read the following license agreement carefully.	4
Important Notice	
Please read the terms and conditions of this license agreement	
carefully before installing the software. This end user license	
agreement (EULA) is between you (either an individual, or a	
single legal entity) and PLANET. By installing the software and	
clicking on the "agree" button, you agree to the term and	
conditions of this agreement. If you do not agree to this	-
I accept the terms of the license agreement Print	
I do not accept the terms of the license agreement	
InstallShield	
< Back Next > Canc	el

5. Proceed by following the on-screen instructions of the InstallShield Wizard.

CV7-VA - InstallShield Wizard	×
	Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for CV7-VA
	The InstallShield Wizard will install CV7-VA on your computer. To continue, click Next.
	< Back Next > Cancel



6. When selecting Setup Type, the default "Complete" option will have the program installed in the default C drive (C:\Program Files(x86)). You can select "Custom" to choose another program location.



7. Proceed by clicking "Install".

CV7-VA - InstallShield Wizard	×
Ready to Install the Program The wizard is ready to begin installation.	X
Click Install to begin the installation.	
If you want to review or change any of your installation settings, click Back. Click the wizard.	. Cancel to exit
InstallShield Kack Install	Cancel



8. The installation process is done. Click "Finish".





9. Open the file by clicking on the CV7-VA shortcut on your desktop. If you can't find a shortcut on your desktop, create your own shortcut by finding the CV7-VA file under C:\Program Files(x86)\ CV7-VA, right click, select "Send To", and select "Desktop (create shortcut)".

)rganize 🔻 📑 Open	Burn New folder			
👉 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
Desktop	ADADP.dll	05/21/2015 18:40	Application extens	1,567 KB
Downloads	AFADP.dll	05/21/2015 18:40	Application extens	1,577 KB
I Recent Places	🚳 ARDL.dll	05/21/2015 18:40	Application extens	1,696 KB
And a second sec	🚳 avcodec-55.dll	05/21/2015 18:40	Application extens	14,566 KB
Libraries	🚳 avutil-52.dll	05/21/2015 18:40	Application extens	1,295 KB
Documents	📽 CV7-VA.exe	Open	Application	1,952 KB
J Music	🚳 DxDraw.dll 🍙	Run as administrator	Application extens	229 KB
Pictures	🚳 EntityFramewo 🍼		Application extens	5,056 KB
Videos	🚳 EntityFramewo	Troubleshoot compatibility	Application extens	584 KB
	SFFMCodec.dll	tran tran grophines processor	Application extens	2,863 KB
Computer	🚳 FisheyeSDK.dll 🕮	······	Application extens	130 KB
Windows7_OS (C:)	🛯 ICSDK.dll	Add to archive	Application extens	1,010 KB
	🚳 IVS_TransCodir 📒	Add to "CV7-VA.rar"	Application extens	513 KB
	🚳 IVSAnalysisRest 🗎	Compress and email	Application extens	129 KB
	🗟 IvsSdkSharp.dll 📜	Compress to "CV7-VA.rar" and email	Application extens	149 KB
	🚳 KMpeg4.dll	Pin to Taskbar	Application extens	1,825 KB
Network	🚳 Microsoft.CSha	Pin to Start Menu	Application extens	472 KB
_	🚳 Microsoft.Expre 🙌	Create SimpleTap tile	Application extens	142 KB
	MigraDoc.Doci	Restore previous versions	Application extens	248 KB
	MigraDoc.Rencess	Send to	Compressed (zi	pped) folder
	NLog.config	Cut	📃 Desktop (create	
	NLog.dll	Сору	Documents	63
	OxyPlot.dll		Fax recipient	
	OxyPlot.Pdf.dll	Create shortcut	Mail recipient	
	OxyPlot.Windo	Delete	G TeamViewer	
	OvvPlot Wof dl	Rename	DVD RW Drive (D:)
CV7-VA.exe Date	modified: 07/08/2015 09:57	Norton File Insight	USB DISK (E:)	
Application	Size: 1.90 MB	Properties	keithy (\\192.16	8.1.174) (X:)



2.2 License and Activation

In the CV7-VA, your required number of channels should be licensed and activated before connecting. License activation is the process of unlocking the channels on CV7-VA with the received License Key. After the license activation, the channels on the CV7-VA will automatically become available.

During license activation, your License Key is matched against the MAC address of the Network Interface Card (NIC) on the CV7-VA computer. Once this license key is used by the computer with a given MAC, it cannot be activated with another MAC. This matching record will be stored on the PLANET license data server. If your computer has more than one network card, the CV7-VA will detect them and provide you with a drop-down list to select from.

Please note:

- The license is cumulative and perpetual.
- The license is not version-specific; upgrading software version will not influence the existing license(s) you have.
- The maximum number of channels that can be managed by the CV7-VA is 9.

PLANET Retworking & Commanked Bn	tw PLANET Istivation & Communication
Software License	Software License
Dear Customer:	Dear Customer:
Your order for license has been received and processed on .	Your order for license has been received and processed on .
Here's your license information: Product: Coverage: License Key:	Here's your license information: Product: Coverage: License Key:
Member ID: support_ica@planet.com.tw	Member ID: support_ica@planet.com.tw
Password: planet	Password: planet
PLANET Technology Corporation	PLANET Technology Corporation
TEL: 886-9-2219-0518 FAX: 885-3-2219-9038 E-mail: selen@planet.com.tw Copyright © 2015 PLANET Technology Corporation. All rights reserved.	TEL 886-2-2219-0516 FAX: 886-3-2219-0528 E-mail sense@ptwort.com.tw Copyright © 2015 PS.AHET Technology Corporation. All rights reserved.

There are two ways to activate the licenses depending on your CV7-VA network condition: Online Activation and Offline Activation.

2.2.1 Online Activation

If your CV7-VA computer has available Internet access, choose online activation.



C1 ~ ~	Α.	Cto ation of t	$h \sim 0$	$\gamma \gamma $	~ ~ + ~	1.00000	406		Registration t	~ h
SIED	1.1	Startino i	ne L	. V / - VA	$\alpha \alpha \pi$	n inense	130 - 5	UNIINA	Redistration t	าก
Olop	••	oluring		/ / ///,	go ic		uv >		1 logioli allori l	uv.

1 2 70				<u> </u>		
	License	Setting	Storage	Language		23
	Online Regi	stration (Offline Registra	tion		
	MAC Add	ress	(8-88-E3-3A-59	9-FA	•
	License K	ey	[
	Account		[
	Password		[
				Apply		
	Linner					

Step 2: Select the MAC Address, enter your License Key, Account and Password, and then click "Apply". The CV7-VA will connect to the license data server via Internet to register the license key, and unlock the channels.

License	Setting	Storage	Language		20	
Online Regi	stration Offl	ine Registratior	ı			
						-
MAC Add	ress	B8-	88-E3-3A-59	-FA	•	
License K	ey					
Account						
Password						
			Apply			

2.2.2 Offline Activation

Offline activation does not require Internet access for the CV7-VA. It is used when the CV7-VA is located in a network not connected to public Internet (e.g., in a military base). You will need to get an activation file from another computer and transfer it to the CV7-VA computer.

Step 1: Please contact PLANET (<u>support_ica@planet.com.tw</u>) and send the License Key and the MAC address of the CV7-VA computer. We will provide you with an activation code file (AUL.lic).



Step 2: Starting the CV7-VA, go to License tab -> Offline Registration tab -> click "Import" and upload the license file (AUL.lic). Click "Apply" to activate this license.

	D9A94F84C323E7EF1C6CE1881FC2D3EE8BC76E80034D43A3816BD85580A82D8A56FB7259D 9637784D47CF908407CE74BF33703C7684739E5E8F7092CABA2A466F652CBCC0256B192D23 9D617FB33056D69EF2CDEB23BA2093C
Activation Key (*.lic file)	
	Import Apply

2.2.3 Verify Your License

Once your license is successfully activated, the license information will be shown on the License page.

Online Registration Offline	Registration			
MAC Address	B8-88-E3-3A-59-FA		•	
License Key				
Account				
Password				
	Annh			
	Apply			
License				
				Total Number of Lice
	license Key	Number of Licenses :	MAC Address	
CASAA-PABAB-PTGPP-AWCQP-	AADPB-APAOS	1	B8-88-E3-3A-59-FA	



Be sure to retain your license key information in a safe place because you may need to reinstall the software. After the software is uninstalled, you should contact PLANET (<u>support_ica@planet.com.tw</u>) to clear the original registration data in our data server, and then you may activate the license again.



Chapter 3. Software Setup

This chapter provides setup details of the Internet Camera's Web-based interface. In order to be able to apply the CV7-VA technology to a video stream, two basic components are needed: Video Sources and Analysis Rules. This chapter will guide you through everything you need to know in order to have a video source, set up analysis rules, and apply them to your video.

3.1. Introduction

When you open your CV7-VA, you will see the following display:



Source List Window

Video Analysis Window

License	You can activate the license here.
Setting	The Setting page includes SMTP function and login function. (The CV7-VA will support this function in the future)
Storage	You can select the storage path here. (The CV7-VA will support this function in the future)
Language Selector	Select the display language.
Layout Selection Bar	By license, choose 1, 4 or 9 layout styles, or expand to full screen.
Channel	Each channel displays a camera view.
Source List Window	All of your video sources are shown here, and can be managed from here.
Video Analysis Window	This area can display your camera views. It can be composed of 1 or more channels.



3.2. Add Video Source

Now you are ready to add some video sources so that they can be analyzed.

Before adding a video source, make sure you have a working NVR Server or camera and confirm its following properties: **1. IP Address**, **2. HTTP Port**, **3. Account Name** and **4. Password**.

- To add an NVR server as a video source, follow these steps:
 - 1. Right-click on the Source List Window and select "Add New NVR/ENR".

	License	Setting	Storage	Language
Add New NVR/ENR				
Add New Camera				

2. After selecting "Add New NVR", a popup window will appear as shown below.

NVR/ENR Camera			
IP Address	localhost		
Http Port Number	80		
Account	admin		
Password	•••••		
Add			

Fill in the 4 marked fields that are required to communicate with the NVR Server: IP Address, HTTP Port, Account Name, and Password.



The default account and password of the CV7L are admin and 123456.



3. After filling out all the fields, click "Add".

NVR/ENR Camera	
IP Address	192.168.1.65
Http Port Number	80
Account	admin
Password	•••••
	Add

4. You will see the NVR server at the Source List Window.

1 00160165	License	Setting	Storage	Language
▶ म्या 192.168.1.65				

You can click the triangle icon showing the camera's IP address that connects to the NVR server.



5. To Remove an NVR server from the Video Source List, right-click on the server's IP and select "Remove".

▶ 1 92.16 <mark>8 1.65</mark>	License	Setting	Storage	Language
Remove				
Refresh by				



Once an NVR Server is added to the Video Source List, all devices that are on the NVR Server will be added to the Video Source List. Please make sure the camera view you want to analyze has already been added to the NVR Server.

• To add camera as a video source, follow these steps:



1. Right-click on the Source List Window and select "Add New Camera".

			License	Setting	Storage	Language
	Add New NVR/ENR					
Add New Camera Add Raw File						
		12				
		_				

2. After selecting "Add New Camera", a popup window will appear as shown below.

NVR/ENR Camera		
IP	127.0.0.1	
Http Port	80	
Streaming Port	6002	
Account	admin	
Password	•••••	
Add		

Fill in the 5 marked fields that are required to communicate with the camera: IP Address, HTTP Port, Streaming Port, Account Name, and Password. You can keep the default "6002" that has been filled in for the Streaming Port field, or select any port that is not being used.

The default account and password of ICA-E series camera are both " admin ".
--



3. After filling out all the fields, click "Add".

NVR/ENR Camera	
IP	192.168.1.32
Http Port	80
Strapping Bart	6000
Streaming Port	6002
Account	admin
Password	•••••
	Add
	Add

4. You will see the camera at the Source List Window.

	License	Setting	Storage	Language
Camera				
Vau oon aliak the triangle icon chowing th		draaa		

You can click the triangle icon showing the camera's IP address.

	License	Setting	Storage	Language
🔺 🥄 🌉 Camera				

5. To remove a camera from the Video Source List, right-click on the camera's IP and select "Remove".

4	📲 Camera	
	a 192.168.1 <u>32</u>	L
	Remove	
	Refresh	
		•

- To add raw file as a video source, follow these steps:
 - 1. Right-click on the Source List Window and select "Add Raw File".

	License	Setting	Storage	Language
Add New NVR/ENR				
Add New Camera				
Add Raw File				



Note

2. Please select a raw file and click "Open".

rganize 🔻 🛛 New fold	ler		H • 🚺 🤇
Favorites	Documents library Includes: 2 locations	Arran	ge by: Folder 🔻
Downloads	Name	Date modified	Туре
Recent Places	🔒 CV7-LP	08/06/2015 17:40	File folder
Libraries	\mu CV7-VA	08/07/2015 17:55	File folder
Documents	\mu Fax	01/10/2014 13:01	File folder
Music	퉬 IvsSmartSearch	06/10/2015 17:53	File folder
Pictures	👪 Notes	07/28/2014 11:31	File folder
Videos	鷆 RainbowFTPG	09/18/2014 18:45	File folder
	Scanned Documents	01/10/2014 13:01	File folder
Computer	ICA-E3550V.raw	08/10/2015 17:12	RAW File
Windows7_OS (C			3
USB DISK (E:)	× [
File r	name: ICA-E3550V.raw	Raw videos (.ra	aw) (*.raw)
		Open	Cancel

Raw file is a video file which was recorded by the CV7L; user can export it from the CV7L.

3. You will see the raw file at the Source List Window.

	License	Setting	Storage	Language
Raw File				

You can click the triangle icon showing the raw file list.

🖉 🔳 Davy Filo	License	Setting	Storage	Language
🔺 🖳 Raw File				
orgeneration ICA-E3550V.raw				



4. To remove a raw file from the list, right-click on the raw file's name and select "Remove".



3.3 Add Channels

In order to see the camera views from the video sources you have added, you need to add them to one of the channels in the Video Analysis Window.

To add channels, follow these steps:

1. On the Source List Window, find the device for which you would like to see the camera view.

If you have devices added in your NVR server but cannot see them in your CV7-VA Source List Window, click on the collapse icon shown next to your NVR server in the Source List Window to expand the device list, or right-click on Source List Window and select "Refresh".

		License	Setting	Storage	Language
4	192.168 1 CE Remove			~	
	Kemove				
	a 192.: Refresh				
	6 192.168.1.17				

2. After finding your device, you can see the camera views from the device by dragging it to the channel area in the Video Analysis Window. If a new device is dragged to a channel with an existing camera view, the existing camera view will be replaced.

If you can't drag the camera to channel area, please click the Layout Select button

, and then drag the camera to channel area again.



3. To remove a camera view, right-click on the channel and select "Remove". Note that the analysis will stop running if you perform this action.



4. To renew the connection to a device, right-click on the channel and select "Reconnect". Note that if you have an analysis running, you must stop the analysis from performing this action.



3.4 Create an Analysis Rule

Now that you are able to see your camera's video feeds, you are ready to create your analysis rules for your camera views. Note that analyses can only be performed when the device has been dragged into a channel window.

The maximum amount of analysis rules that can be simultaneously performed on a channel is 4, while the maximum number of channels that can perform analysis simultaneously is 9.



Please note the smoothness of performance may depend on your computer's hardware capacity.

3.4.1 Live View Analysis

To access the function to create a new analysis rule for a live view, follow the steps below:

1. Right-click on the channel window of your video, click on "Create Analysis" and select "Live".





Only when the video source is NVR or camera, user can create a new analysis rule for a live view.

2. In the new pop-up window that appears, input a name for your analysis rule and click "OK".

Input Analysis Name	-
Please enter a new analysis	name.
New Analysis	New Analysis
Load Analysis	New Analysis 👻
	OK Cancel

New Analysis	Create a new analysis and input its name.
Load Analysis	If you have created an analysis before, you can reload it from the analysis list. (The CV7-VA will support this function in the future)



3. A New Analysis Window will appear, and you are now ready to set up your analysis rules.



3.4.2 Playback Analysis

To access the function to create a new analysis rule for non-live video footage that already exists for the selected channel, follow the steps below:

1. Right-click on the channel window of your video, click on "Create Analysis", and select "Playback".







Only when the video source is NVR, user can create a new analysis rule for a playback.

2. In the new pop-up window that appears, input a name for your analysis rule and click "OK".

Input Analysis Name	and the second se
Please enter a new ana	lysis name.
New Analysis	New Analysis
Coad Analysis	New Analysis 👻
	OK Cancel

New Analysis	Create a new analysis and input its name.
Load Analysis	If you have created an analysis before, you can reload it from the analysis list.
	(The CV7-VA will support this function in the future.)

3. A New Analysis Window will appear, and you are now ready to set up your analysis rules.

🗱 New Analysis	
Smoke Detection Queue Manager Smart Search Retail Incorrect Direction	Display All Algorithm Regions
Crossing Tamper	
Line Crossing Properties	
Enable	
Record Moving Object Record Moving Object Send Event Notification to NVR Detail Send Email Notification Detail Set Multiple Events Detail Start Reset Multiple Objects Reset Reset	
	2015-07-31 16:41:36 C C 07/31/2015 16:41:35 07/31/2015 16:40:36 07/31/2015 16:41:36 07/31/2015 16:42:36

4. You can select the time interval you wish to analyze. To set your time interval, follow



the steps below:

a. If you want to select another date and time, please adjust the time function.

2015-07-31 16:41:36 🗘 💌	07/31/2015 16:41:35	
07/31/2015 16:40:36	07/31/2015 16:41:36	07/31/2015 16:42:36

b. Set the beginning of the interval by right-clicking on any location on the Time Bar, and select "Set as Starting Time".

07-31 18:26:37 Set as Ending Time 8:26:36 07/31/2015 11 Clear 26:37 07/31/2015 18:27:37		Set as Starting Time		
07/31/2015 10 Clear 26:37 07/31/2015 18:27:37	07-31 18:26:37	Set as Ending Time	8:26:36	
	07/31/2015 1	Clear	:26:37	07/31/2015 18:27:37
		•		

c. Set the end of the interval by right-clicking on any location on the time bar, and select "Set as Ending Time".

	Set as Starting Time	
2015-07-31 18:26:37 🌲 🗸	Set as Ending Time]
07/31/2015 18:25:37	Clear	07/31/2015 18:27:37

d. The selected area should appear highlighted in green. To clear or edit your selection, right-click and select "Clear" to set a new time interval.

07/31/2015 18:26:37	07/21/2015 19:27:27
07/31/2013 10:20:37	07/31/2015 18:27:37

3.4.3 Raw File Analysis

To access the function to create a new analysis rule for raw file that already recorded for the selected channel, follow the steps below:



1. Right-click on the channel window of your video, click on "Create Analysis", and select "File".





Only when the video source is raw file, user can create a new analysis rule for a file.

2. In the new pop-up window that appears, input a name for your analysis rule and click "OK".

Please enter a new ana	alysis name.
New Analysis	New Analysis
Coad Analysis	New Analysis 👻
	OK Cancel

New Analysis	Create a new analysis and input its name.
Load Analysis	If you have created an analysis before, you can reload it from the analysis list. (The CV7-VA will support this function in the future.)

3. A New Analysis Window will appear and you are now ready to set up your analysis rules.





3.5 New Analysis Window UI Introduction





Algorithm:

Provides the selection of algorithm and adjustment for each algorithm's unique properties. New algorithms may be added, so please refer to the algorithm list shown below:

	Functions available now	Functions available in the
		future
	Line Crossing	Incorrect Direction
	Entering Area	Smoke Detection
	Missing Object	Queue Manager
Algorithm	Unattended Object	Other Algorithms
	Tampering	
	Object Counting	
	People Counting	

Settings:

	Enable	Enables this algorithm.
	Record Moving Object	If you would like to record all moving objects on your camera view while running the analysis, mark the box for "Record Moving Object".
Analysis Selection and Settings	Send Event Notification to NVR	The CV7-VA will send notification to NVR when it is triggered. Click "Detail" to configure it. An example of how to set the settings is shown: Send Event Notification to NVR Default destination IP 192.168.1.66 Port 8000 Account admin Password 123456 Send all events Only send multiple event's result OK Cancel
	Send Email Notification	The CV7-VA will send an alarm email when it is triggered. Click "Detail" to configure it. (The CV7-VA will support this function in the future)
	Set Multiple Events	The CV7-VA will support this function in the future.
	Set Multiple Objects	You can set three kinds of object size in the algorithm. (The CV7-VA will support this function in the future)
Background Properties	Minimum Height: Depending on the	distance between your camera device and the ground, the



Setting	perceived size of objects will change For example, the farther the device is, the smaller the object will appear. MinHeight allows the user to determine the minimum height (1-240 pixels) of the Object Size Reference Frame (found in the bottom left corner of the Live View Display) used for the calculation of an object. Any moving object whose height is smaller than this value will be treated as non-relevant. Minimum Width: Depending on the distance between your camera device and the ground, the perceived size of objects will change For example, the farther the device is, the smaller the object will appear. MinWidth allows the user to determine the minimum width (1-320 pixels) of the Object Size Reference Frame (found in the bottom left corner of the Live View Display) used for the calculation of an object. Any moving object whose width is smaller than this value will be
	treated as non-relevant.
Live View Display	Provides live camera view of the selected video source.
Time Bar	Shows the time at which the video in Live View Display is taking place (as determined by user's PC).

3.6 Analysis Introduction

3.6.1 Line Crossing

In certain scenarios, you might want to know when people enter a certain restricted area, or when people pass beyond a certain point that you may deem them suspicious. To take care of this, the CV7-VA provides a Line Crossing algorithm, which can provide you with the ability to draw a virtual line on any part of your camera view, and keep an eye on anyone in your camera view that crosses or touches that line. Note that the lines marked for Line Crossing algorithm will be shown in blue.

To set up your Line Crossing algorithm, follow the steps below:

1. On the Smart Search tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "Line Crossing" button.





2. Under the Line Crossing Properties that appears on your screen, check the box for "Enable" to allow for the algorithm to work.

Line Crossing Properties	
Enable	
	5
Enable	
enable line crossing	

3. Move your cursor over to the area showing video stream. Once over the area, your cursor will appear as a drawing pen. Draw the blue line that will be used to detect suspicious activity by dragging your cursor from a starting point to an end point.





4. If you need to re-draw the line, right-click on the line and select "remove" to remove the existing line, and re-draw.



5. You can adjust the object size in Background Properties.

Background Propertie	s	
Minimum Height	48	
Minimum Width	64	

6. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.

EL	
Note	

If you have set up more than 1 algorithm in the same analysis, check the "Display All Algorithm Regions" box on the upper left hand corner of the Live View Display to see all marked regions at once.

Reset

3.6.2 Enter Area

As important as it is for a surveillance system to record the details of an event, it is equally important to detect suspicious activities and prevent the possibility of an unwanted event. The CV7-VA provides an "Enter Area" algorithm to keep track of people that are acting suspiciously by loitering in a designated area for too long. Note that the areas marked for Enter Area algorithm will be highlighted in yellow.

Start

To set up your Enter Area algorithm, follow the steps below:



1. On the Smart Search tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "Enter Area" button.



2. Under the Enter Area Properties that appears on your screen, adjust the property settings to configure your algorithm. Check the box for "Enable" to allow for the algorithm to work.

Enter Area Properties	
Enable	X
Threshold	1
Enable enable enter area	

Enable	Enables Enter Area algorithm.
Threshold	Determines the maximum amount of time (in seconds) that a person can
Threshold	remain in an area without triggering an event.

3. Move your cursor over to the area showing video stream. Once over the area, your cursor will appear as a drawing pen. To draw the rectangle that will mark your forbidden area, click and drag your cursor to draw a yellow rectangle.



If the area you want to mark does not fit to the form of a rectangle, you may also choose to draw a polygon by selecting the icon on the upper right corner of your



Live View Display area. To draw the lines for the sides of your polygon, click your cursor to mark the endpoints of each line. Double-click on the final endpoint of the final line to confirm and highlight the polygon in yellow, as shown in the illustration below. Make sure your lines connect (a minimum of 3 lines) to form a closed shape.



5. To adjust the marked area, you can drag the highlighted area to keep its original shape or right-click on the area, select "remove", and re-draw. For polygons, you may toggle the endpoints of the lines that make up the sides of your polygon.





6. You can adjust the object size in Background Properties.

Background Propertie	5	
Minimum Height	48	
Minimum Width	64	

7. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.

Start	Reset
-------	-------

3.6.3 Missing Object

When you are providing security for a valuable object, it can be helpful to have a pair of digital eyes that can know when your object goes missing. The CV7-VA provides an algorithm called "Missing Object" that can detect when an object goes missing in a designated area. Note that the areas marked for Missing Object algorithm will be highlighted in light blue.

To set up your Missing Object algorithm, follow the steps below:

1. On the Smart Search tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "Missing Object" button.



2. Under the Missing Object Properties that appears on your screen, adjust the property settings to configure your algorithm. Check the box for "Enable" to allow for the algorithm to work.

Missing Object Pro	perties
Enable	
Threshold	5
Enable enable missing obje	ct

Enable	Enables Missing Object algorithm.
Threehold	Determines the maximum amount of time (in seconds) that an object can
Threshold	be missing without triggering an event.

3. Move your cursor over to the area showing video stream. Once over the area, your cursor will appear as a drawing pen. To draw the rectangle that will mark the area for





detection, click and drag your cursor to draw a light blue rectangle.

4. If the area you want to mark does not fit to the form of a rectangle, you may also

choose to draw a polygon by selecting the icon on the upper right corner of your Live View Display area. To draw the lines for the sides of your polygon, click your cursor to mark the endpoints of each line. Double-click on the final endpoint of the final line to confirm and highlight the polygon in yellow, as shown in the illustration below. Make sure your lines connect (a minimum of 3 lines) to form a closed shape.





5. To adjust the marked area, you can drag the highlighted area to keep its original shape or right-click on the area, select "remove", and re-draw. For polygons, you may toggle the endpoints of the lines that make up the sides of your polygon.



6. You can adjust the object size in Background Properties.

inimum Height 48
inimum Width 64
inimum Width 64

7. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.

Start

3.6.4 Unattended Object

As important as it is to make sure that no object goes missing, it is also important to make sure that no uninvited object appears, for it could cause unwanted surprises. To tackle these surprises, the CV7-VA provides an "Unattended Object" algorithm to keep track of new objects that appear in a designated area. Note that the areas marked for Unattended Object algorithm will be highlighted in green.


To set up your Unattended Object algorithm, follow the steps below:

1. On the Smart Search tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "Unattended Object" button.



2. Under the Unattended Object Properties that appears on your screen, adjust the property settings to configure your algorithm. Check the box for "Enable" to allow for the algorithm to work.

Unattended Object Properties	
Enable	
Threshold	5
Enable enable unattended object	

Enable	Enables Unattended Object algorithm.
Threshold	Determines the maximum amount of time (in seconds) that an object can
	be unattended without triggering an event.

3. Move your cursor over to the area showing video stream. Once over the area, your cursor will appear as a drawing pen. To draw the rectangle that will mark the area for detection, click and drag your cursor to draw a green rectangle.





4. If the area you want to mark does not fit to the form of a rectangle, you may also

choose to draw a polygon by selecting the icon on the upper right corner of your Live View Display area. To draw the lines for the sides of your polygon, click your cursor to mark the endpoints of each line. Double-click on the final endpoint of the final line to confirm and highlight the polygon in yellow, as shown in the illustration below. Make sure your lines connect (a minimum of 3 lines) to form a closed shape.



5. To adjust the marked area, you can drag the highlighted area to keep its original shape or right-click on the area, select "remove", and re-draw. For polygons, you may toggle the endpoints of the lines that make up the sides of your polygon.





6. You can adjust the object size in Background Properties.

Background Propertie	s	
Minimum Height	48	
Minimum Width	64	

7. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.

Start	Reset
-------	-------

3.6.5 Tamper

A camera that has been tampered with is not able to serve its purpose. To avoid this, the CV7-VA offers an algorithm to detect whether any form of tampering has been done to a camera device, whether it be in the form of redirecting the angle of the device, de-focusing the device, or covering or spray-painting the device.

To set up your Tamper algorithm, follow the steps below:

1. On the Smart Search tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "Tamper" button.



2. Under the Tamper Properties that appears on your screen, adjust the property settings to configure your algorithm. Check the box for "Enable" to allow for the algorithm to work.

Tamper Properties		
Enable		
Sensitivity	50	
Enable enable tamper		

Enable	Enables Tamper algorithm.
• • • •	Determines how sensitive the camera reacts to the tampering. The higher
Sensitivity	the sensitivity level is, the less tampering will trigger the algorithm, but may give false alarms.



3. You can adjust the object size in Background Properties.

Background Propertie	s	
Minimum Height	48	
Minimum Width	64	
Winning Widen	04	

4. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.

Start	Reset
-------	-------

3.6.6 Object Count

In certain locations and scenarios, you may want to know how many, or if any, objects have entered or exited an area. The CV7-VA offers an algorithm for these scenarios, called "Object Count". Note that if an Analysis Rule uses the Object Count algorithm, it cannot contain other algorithms. Note that the line drawn for Object Count algorithm will be pink.

To set up Object Count algorithm, follow the steps below:

1. On the Retail tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "Object Count" button.



2. Under the Object Count Properties that appears on your screen, adjust the property settings to configure your algorithm. Make sure the "Enable" property is checked to draw the user-defined reference line.

Object Count Properties	
Enable	V
Enable Elevator Mode	
Object Height	48
Object Width	64
Record Duration	1
Enable enable object count	

Enable	Enables Object Count algorithm.	
Enable Elevator	The $CV/T V/A$ will support this function in the future	
Mode	The CV7-VA will support this function in the future	



Object Height	Depending on the distance between your camera device and the ground, the perceived size of objects passing by will change. For example, the farther the device is, the smaller objects will appear. Object Height allows the user to determine the height (1-240 pixels) of the Object Size Reference Frame (found in the bottom left corner of the Live View Display) used for the calculation of 1 object. The smaller the object appears on the video stream (the farther away the device is), the smaller the value should be.
Object Width	Depending on the distance between your camera device and the ground, the perceived size of objects passing by will change. For example, the farther the device is, the smaller objects will appear. Object Width allows the user to determine the width (1-320 pixels) of the Object Size Reference Frame (found in the bottom left corner of the Live View Display) used for the calculation of 1 object. The smaller the object appears on the video stream (the farther away the device is), the smaller the value should be.
Record Duration (in minutes)	Set the interval at which the values for the objects counted going in and out will be updated on the Counting Report. An interval of 1 minute will be updated more regularly than an interval of 10 minutes.

3. Move your cursor over to the area showing video stream. Once over the area, your cursor will appear as a drawing pen. Draw the pink reference line that will be used to count the objects that cross over this line by dragging your cursor from a starting point to an end point.





4. Once completed, you will see the line and the labels that will be used to show the number of objects entering (In) and exiting (Out) the scene. To re-draw the line or reverse the locations for In and Out, simply right-click the line and select "remove" or "reverse".



5. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.

Start	Reset



For the Object Count algorithm to work properly, make sure the camera from which you are obtaining the video is located above the scene of interest.

3.6.7 People Count

In certain locations and scenarios, like at the entrance of a shop or a restricted area, it can be helpful to know how many people have entered or exited the area. The CV7-VA offers "People Count" algorithm for these scenarios. Note that if an Analysis Rule uses the People Count algorithm, it cannot contain other algorithms. Note that the line drawn for People Count algorithm is in orange.

To set up People Count algorithm, follow the steps below:

1. On the Retail tab of your New Analysis Window, select the "People Count" button.

Smoke De	etect	tection		Queue Manager		
Smart Searc	h	Retail		n Retail		Incorrect Direction
Object Count	Pi C	eople count				



2. Under the People Count Properties that appears on your screen, adjust the property settings to configure your People Counting algorithm. Make sure the "Enable" property is checked to draw the user-defined reference line.

Enable	v	
People Height	80	
Record Duration	1	
Enable		

Enable	Enables People Count algorithm.
People Height	Depending on the distance between your camera device and the ground, the perceived size of people passing by will change. For example, the farther the device is, the smaller people will appear. People Height allows the user to determine the height (1-240 pixels) of the People Size Reference Frame (found in the bottom left corner of the Live View Display) used for the calculation of 1 person. The smaller the people appear on the video stream (the farther away the device is), the smaller the value should be.
Record Duration (in minutes)	Set the interval at which the values for the people counted going in and out will be updated on the Counting Report. An interval of 1 minute will be updated more regularly than an interval of 10 minutes.

3. Move your cursor over to the area showing video stream. Once over the area, your cursor will appear as a drawing pen. Draw the pink reference line that will be used to count the objects that cross over this line by dragging your cursor from a starting point to an end point.





4. Once completed, you will see the line and the labels that will be used to show the number of objects entering (In) and exiting (Out) the scene. To re-draw the line or reverse the locations for In and Out, simply right-click the line and select "reverse" or "remove".



5. Click "Start" to start running your analysis.





 For the People Count algorithm to work properly, make sure the camera from which you are obtaining the video has a frontal view of the scene of interest.
 The precision of your video analysis depends on the video quality and may be affected by the characteristics of objects in the video stream. To obtain the best results, test your analysis rules and optimize your settings.



3.7 Stop an Analysis Rule

If you are only running your Analysis Rule(s) for a specific time period or you wish to stop running the Analysis Rule(s) at any point, you can do so by using the "Stop Analysis" function. To access this function, simply right-click on the channel that you wish to stop the analysis, and select "Stop Analysis".





All analyses will stop running if the CV7-VA window is closed. To continue running an analysis, the settings will have to be re-configured in a new Analysis Rule.

3.8 Display Detection Indicators

To enhance awareness when monitoring your live video feed, it may be helpful to have visual cues about the analyses that you are running or objects that are moving on your screen. In order to achieve this, CV7-VA provides the option to display detection indicators or show the moving objects on the screen.



To access this function, simply right-click on a channel and select "Show Algorithm Regions" to display detection indicators and/or select "Show Moving Objects" to show the moving objects on the camera feed. Note that all algorithm regions are marked according to their respective colors.







3.9 Analysis Results

After setting up your analysis rules and allowing the software to detect these events, the next logical step would be to look at what events have been captured. To browse the events that have been captured based on the rules defined by the user, you can use the Results and Report function of the CV7-VA.



To access this function, right-click on the area of the Video Analysis Window that is running the analysis rule for which you would like to see the results and select "Browse Analysis Results".



A new Analysis Results Window that contains the events captured as a result of the analysis rules will open. Note that the Analysis Result Snapshots that are shown are the 1st frame of the event that has been captured. If you do not find an event that you are looking for or if you wish to see more events, use the Scroll Bar on the right to navigate the list of snapshots.





3.9.1 Search Results by Filters

To narrow down the search results that are shown in the Analysis Result Snapshots area, you can use the options presented in the Analysis Result Filter area to filter by Time Period, Algorithm, Color and Object Size. Note that these filters are used in conjunction with each other.



Please refer to the steps to search results:

1. Select the date and time for the beginning of the time period.



2. Select the date and time for the end of the time period.

2015-07-30 13:42:22 🗘 💌 ~	2015	-08-	30 :	14:42	2:22	÷	•	
	•		Aug	ust, 2	2015	i	►	
	Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	
	26	27	28	29	30	31	1	
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	
	30	31	1	2	3	4	5	
	14:42						\$	¥



3. Select an algorithm or multiple algorithms from the algorithm list.



4. (Optional) If the results you wish to see or find include a moving object that is in a specific color, you can set this by configuring the Color filter.



5. (Optional) If you wish to see or find the result by object size, you can select the size here. For now, the CV7-VA supports "All". It will support a specific size of your own choosing in the future.

🔽 All 🛛 🔻
All
🔽 Large
🗹 Medium
🔽 Small

6. Click the search button

3.9.2 View Multiple Analysis Rule Results

Once in the Analysis Results Window, you can select to view results for other analysis rules that you may have previously created for the same device.

In order to view the results of multiple analysis rules in the same device, follow these steps:

1. On the left hand side of your Analysis Results Window, under your selected device, check the boxes for the analysis rules that you wish to see.

2. Click the sea	arch button 🏊 .
🔺 🔍 Camera	Smart Search Results Counting Report Incorrect Direction Results Smoke Detection Results Queue Manager Results
 ▲ 192.168.1.16 ☑ New Analysis ☑ New Analysis 	2015-07-14 17:13:05 💭 🔹 2015-08-30 14:42:22 🗘 💌 🔳 🗈 Line Crossing 🔹
✓ New Analysis ✓ New Analysis	





3.9.3 Delete Analysis Rule Result

There may be a time when you wish to delete some of the Analysis Rules that you have created whether to increase storage space or for aesthetic purposes.

In order to permanently delete analyses, follow these steps:

1. On the left hand side of your Analysis Results Window, under your selected device, check the boxes for the analysis rules that you wish to delete.

Click U to delete it.



2.

Once an analysis rule is deleted, everything related to it (including events and videos captured using the analysis rule) will also be deleted.

3.10 Watch Event Playback

Now that you have found the events that fit your analysis rule, you can watch the playback of these events.



To watch these events, double-click on the single Analysis Result Snapshot that you would like to review. A new Player Window will open, ready to play your event. Please note that for each captured event, the CV7-VA will also provide video footage of moments leading up to the event (approximately 20 seconds) as well as moments after the event (approximately 5 seconds). This means that the event that triggered the recording may only appear after the 20 seconds marked on the Progress Bar.



If you cannot see the control buttons located at the bottom of the Player Window, hover your cursor over the area it should be located, and it will appear.

File	Open: Allows you to open other files (in RAW format).
File	Close: Closes the current file that is open.
Setting	Timestamp: After the Setting button is clicked, the Timestamp checkbox will allow you to decide whether or not to show the time and date of the video. If selected, it will appear on the upper left corner of the Player Window. SmartSearch Properties: After the Setting button is clicked and XML Analysis checkbox is marked, you have the option to configure the Smartsearch Properties. If selected, you can decide whether or not to display the detection indicators for the algorithms that were used. Object Filter: After the Setting button is clicked and XML Analysis checkbox is marked, you have the option to configure the Object Filter properties. If selected, you can decide whether or not to display detection indicators for the events that were captured.
Play/Pause	Allows you to control the playback of the file.



Progress Bar Shows the progress of the video playback. You can toggle the blue circle on the progress bar to jump to different parts of the video.



The options that will be shown when selecting Smart Search Properties and Object Filter are dynamic. This means that only algorithms that were used when creating the Analysis Rule of the video will be available.

3.11 Counting Report

If your analysis rule uses a counting algorithm, you can gain more insights using the Counting Report. To access this report, you can select the "Counting Report" tab at the top of your Analysis Result window.



Your Counting Report will appear, showing a graph with the number of people or objects that have entered or exited a certain area based on the previously drawn reference line. Note that the title of the graph is the name of the analysis rule previously created. The x- and y-axis are for time passed and number of people or objects, respectively. The value for people/objects that have entered the area is shown in blue, while the value for people/objects that have exited the area is shown in yellow.



If you need to export the result, please click the "Generate CSV" and then select the save path to export result as an excel file (.csv).

2015-08-20 11:08:06 🗘 💌 ~ 2016-08-20 11:08:06 🗘 🗸 Occurance Interval : O Hour O Day O Week @ Month Generate CSV



3.12 Export Search Result

To export the video results of your analysis, right-click on the snapshot of the event in your Analysis Results Window, click "Export Video", and then select the save path to export video.

You can also delete the result by clicking "Delete Event".

✓ Camera ✓ 192.168.1.16 ✓ New Analysis ✓ 192.168.1.125 ✓ 192.168.1.125 ✓ 192.168.1.125



The exported files include a raw file and an xml file.